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lhat the construction cost was -- would exceed the

estimated construction cost in the designation process?

Vühen did you first become aware of that?

MR. |4AYHRS: Once we received the bids.

MR. VüARRtrN: And that would have been when?

MR: MAYEF.S: f don't recal1 the exact dates, but it

ù¡as somewhere around the first or second quarter af 2077 "

MR. WARREN: And your evidence is that you hiere

unaware until the first or second quarter of 2t11 Lhat the

construcLion cost estimate would exceed, materially, lhe

cost that you had estimated -in the designation process; is

that correct?

MR. MAYARS: In -- yeah, roundabout time frame, y€s"

!üe got. or::r cost esti.mates i..n, we hegan eval.u¡rti.ng 't-hose

cost estirnates, and when we actually reviewed the three

h'ids that. we determined to be acceplable, a determination

was nrarte LiraL Lhere was gr-rirrg Lrt l-re sr*1nrë rlegLlLiaLirrr¡ wi Llr

Õne contractor, and that negotiation lasted for quite some

time until we got to the December '71 actual award date.

MR. WARREN: My recollectíon of what Ms. Tidmarsh tol-d

us last week, or whenever it \¡Ias, was that the discussions

that Ne*tBridge had had with Ëarks Canada räsulteä ïn a

firm decision ,in January of 2fÌ1.5 that NextBridgã was nnt

going t.o be able to use the park portion of its route; is

that correct?

MR. MÀYERS: I don't recalf the

MR. WARREN: ?tith Ms. Tidmarsh?

MR. MAYERS: I don't recall the dates.
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MR. WÀRREN: Wifl you take it subject to check that.

Ms. Tidmarsh totd me that it was finally in January of 2015

that NextBridge knew definitively that it was not going to

be able to use t.he park route?

MR. MAYERS: Subject. to check.

MR. ïüARREN: So when you were not able to use the park

route, one of the practical effects rn¡as that the NextBridge

route was going to have to be longer by some 43 kilometresi

is that right?

MR. MAYERS: lrle didn't know at thal time exactly where

the route was going to take us. I¡le knew thal it went ri-ght

around the outer boundary of the park. You might have had

a shorter distance, Ìrut then alternative ror¡tes had to be

evaluat ed.

MR. WARREN: When h¡ere those alternative routes

evaluated?

MR. Ml\YtrRS: lüell¡ wê wculd have started probably

sometime thereafter. f think we originally looked at

alle::native routes when r¡Ie hrere workinq on the designation.

So this was you know, we haci La ç¡o back to plan B, and

we began seriously looking at it then, subject to check on

the date that you mentioned. ft would have been in that

first quarter of 2015.

MR. L{ARREN: And going to an alternative route that

was longer was going to inc::ease the construction cost; is

that not faír, Mr. Mayers?

MR. MAYERS: Potent.iatly. I¡üe had no idea what it

would to cost Lo have to go through the park, based on the
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potent.ial environmental impacls, based on whether t.he park

h/as going to have to charge us some significant fee or

otherwise.

So it wasn't just because you have a longer route

doesn't necessari-ly mean it's more expensive.

MR. WARREN: When did you first become ai¡¡are, Mr.

Mayers, that the alternate route around t.he park was going

to cost more money in construction? When did you first

become alrare of that?

MR. MAYERS: When we received the bids in 201-7.

MR. WARREN: Two years later it took you to find out

that it r¡as going to cost more to go around the park. Is

that cotrreçt. !,{r. Mayers?

MR. MAYERS: As f said, we had. not bid the project out

up to that pointr so j-t was impossible for us to make a

determination. You seem to speculate that just because

And that is not always the case.

MR. hIARREN: Did you report in January of 2015 did

t.he staff c"rf ldextBridge report" to the l:oard of directors

about the decision of Parks Canada. and the fact that a

longer or alternative route would have to be found?

MR. MAYERS: I don't know the answer tc that.

MR. VüARREN: Can you underlake to fi.nd out whether you

di..d anci, -j-f sor to provide a cCIpy of the report to the

board of directors on that point?

MR. MAYERS: Yes.

MS. CRNOJACKI: That would be someone is meddling
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in a verîy soft-spoken manner, and my aging assets sometimes

do not allow me to hear and I see other nods in the

room, so perhaps it's not just me. So, thank you.

MR. !üARREN: Is this a contest of aging asseLs?

MS. LEA: No, sir, you'll win. You asked for that.

I'm jusl asking yCIu if you could please speak into the mic

â litt.le bit more loudly. Thank you.

MR. WARREN: I've never been a accused of being soft-

spoken, and I take some umbrage at that.

MS. LEA: I do apologize, sir.

MR. IIüARR.EN: Äl some point, and f don't remember the

chronology, witness you wi-Il tell me if you canrt hear

flÊ¡ right?

MR. Mi\YERS: Irm fortunaLe enough to be sitting close,
Tì)(J r. . .

MR. tüÃ,RREN: We all find our luck in strange t¡¡ays,

don't we, Mr, Mayers"

o say I don't

remember the exact chronology, a decision &¡as taken by the

men Minister of Energy to detay the in-service date for
East'West Tie, to deì-ay it from its original date to 2A20.

I believe that decision was taken sometime in 201-5,

20L6. Do you recall that?

MR. MAYERS: I recall a decision was made to delay.

been 'l-4 or 'L5.It might have

MR. !üARRtrN: Now, lhat delay, according to the

evidence which NextBridge has filed, resulted in art

increase in cost, and the number that f recaål from the
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SENSE WE TÍOULD C.A3L THE COST TO OPERATE THE LINE; A¡TD

IF IT rS THE Í,ATTER CATEGORY, TO SPLrr rr OUT AETÏ{EE¡¡

WHAT !fO{':,D BE CåPTTAJ- COSTS AIi¡Ð OPERATTNG COSTS ^A}¡Ð

OMEA COSTS EROM REGUI,ATORY P{'RPOSES,. A}¡D IF THERE IS â.

THIRD CATEGORY OT COSTS THAT ARE NOT TNCTT'DEÐ ÏIìT

EïTHER YOUR APPLTCATTON FOR OM&A ã¡¡Ð CAPITAI,, SUCH å,S

ÏÍITAT I TÛOT'ID CAI,L CAPITAL COSTS TITAT YOU WOÜLÐ NEED TO

opERArE THE LINE, TO PROVTDE TIIE FTRECAST FOR ïHE

FIRST YEJAR IT WItt BS TN SERVICE.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: And am I correct from our discussions

in your technical conference for your project, you have a

proposed in-service date of December 202A?

MR. MAYERS: Thatrs correct"

MR. RUBENSTEIN: And that is based on getting a leave

to construction decision from this Board by the end of

July, your schedule is based on that.

MR. MÀYERS: That's correct.

ffi
;,

.;:,,:ffi
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.lì*&::Z&,i,wffi
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4 MR. STEVENS: I believe that that's what's indicated

5 at the bott.om of the schedule tabLe that was provided close

6 to the tlme of the technical conference in the leave to

7 const"ruct proceeding. It indicates one month.

MR. RUBtrNSTtrIN: All right" I don't want Lo Lread on

too much ground that Mr. Warren covered, but I do have a

couple of questions.

And am f correct that with respect to the quarterly

updates that you provided to the Board, the first one that

idenlified the increase from t.he $397 million construction

forecast was the April 3Oth quarlerly update; is that
¡nrra¡1- ?

MR. MAYHRS: April 30th of whal year?

MR. RUBtrNSTETN: 2471, sorry.

MR. MAYERS: f brelieve that's co::rect.

MR. RUBENSTEfN: And from your discussion today, at no

point previously díd you conduct an updated cosL forecast

or inform your board of directors of the possibility of an

increase; did T understand that?

MR. MAYERS: Yes.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: And was that with respect to a

specific numh'err so you di-d not have â -- an updated

specific capital forecasl, hrut aL any point did you update

yÕur l:oard of directors of t.he possibilíty that there would

be some form of increase between the designation date and

understanding is that we have some time in there. .I donrt

know specifically if it's a full month, but we'11 say if

(613) W2V27
ASAP Rryrfi ng Seru'æs Ine
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1 t.he April -- or the docurnenls that went" before the April

2 30th quarterly update to this Board?

3 MR. MAYERS: I'm not aware of all the reports that

4 were filed. I'm not aware exactly as to whelher or not

5 those are correct statements.

6 MR. RIIBENSTEIN; And a,e someone who's involveci in this
7 project, did you at any point between the designation and

8 the documents that led up to the April 30th, 2Ol7 quarterly

9 report think to yourself that there is a possibility that
1_0
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there may be a material- increase in costs?

MR. MAYERS: There's always a chance for the cost to
j-ncrease, but specifically, wj-thout having the due

diligence complete and having the bids in from the

construction conLractor, it's almost impossible to

determine whal Lhe market conditions are going to be l-ike

and what the cost of the project, the final cost of the

project¡ is going to be.

MR. TE Now. you, in response to questions

from Mr. Warren, you discussed, with respect to the

decision of the Parks Canada, that, you know, you didn't
know that -- just because the line may be J-onger doesn'L

necessarily mean that it may cost more, Do you reca1l

those discussions?

MR. MA,YERS: Yes.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: lrlhat about with respect. to the

decision by the IESO to push out the in-service date by a

number of years? Did you think to yourself at that point:

!{e11, the cost may increase because of that?

(61s) 5æ2727
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MR. MAYERS: Generally costs don't go dohtn, whether it

is commodity pricing, whether itts labour, you tend not to

know that -- I mean, you tend not to see -- you tend to see

costs increase over t.ime.

MR. RUBENSTEfN: So do f take that as a yes?

MR. MAYERS: l{e clearly understood that you could have

some cost increase in the project for sure. and

specifically in delays, and I think \de've discussed this in

the past. r think we've discussed that there is escalalion

cosLs related to this, and general additional consulting

costs and everything else that go into the development

costs t.hat b¡ere presented...

MR. RUBENSTEIN: I'm not talking about the development

costs, I'Ír talking about the construction costs. Because

iid you or any member of the NextBridge team

discuss amongst yourself or think amongst yourselves that

costs may materially increase because the IESO has pushed

out the in-service date of the project?

MR. MAYERS: Yesr we knew that the costs would

probably increase

MR, RUBENSTEIN: And at what point in time woutd that

have -- would you have thought amongst yourselves about

that increase?

MR. ¡4AYERS: { don'L recall t.he dates.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Roughly, f mean, obviously I am not

asking for a specifíc date.

MR. MAYERS: uel-I, I would" imagine that at t.he time we

got notice that there was going to be a delay. You can, as2B

{613) 564..2727
ASAP Rryrting SenøæIne

(4''6) 861-8720



I
2

3

4

E

6

1

B

o

10

l-1

11

l-5

14

15

16

'1 '1

1C)
l- tl

19

2A

2L

22

¿-)

24

25

26

.)A

65

you stated, you can pretty much determine that there is

going to be additional costs related to the project.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: And I'm just and from your comment

earlier, you were not ar¡rare if you then informed your board

of directors of lhat?

MR. MAYERS: f am not aware, ño.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: All right. Now, with respect Lo your

reporlíng between NextBridge and your board, ¡¡as NextBridge

communicating regularly, not necessarily with the board as

-- with the board of t.he project as an entity itself, but

with members of the board or members of the pa::tner

organizations ai:out the status of the project?

MR. MAYERS: I don't know the answer to that.

MR. RUBENSTEfN: Yon don't know if there was ongoing

discussions? Did you have ongoing discussions?

MR. MAYtrRS: I did nat.

MR. RUBEITTSTETITI: l(low, I reâd H\rdro r:)nê -- this is my

read of Hydro One's appl ication as essentiatly their value

proposilion to the Board is we b,elj-eve we can do the

prÕject. more cost effectively; iL is cheaper for us to do

it than the NextBridge proiect. At a high-level, is that

how you read their...

t"IR. pIAYtrRS: That's lheir assertion, yes.

MR. RUBBNSTBIN: So I'm assuming you've read their

project proposal-, correct? Their leave to construct

applicat-ion?

MR. |4AYERS: I've read parts. But no, I won't aclmil

to reading the entire documentr flo.
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MS. CRNOJACKI: JTI-.14 "

UNDERTA¡(ING NO. .TT1 . 14: TO PROVIDE COPIES ÕF THE NPCC

ST^â}IÐARDS REFERRED TO

MS. LEA: The whole standardr oy just t.he sect.ion?

That wasnft clear to me.

MR. RUBENSTEfN: Well, that rough section. f don't

need you lo file the enlire I assume they're lengthy,

but more than just t.hat paragraph.

All right. If f can ask you -- and I apologize in

advance on the pronunciation, which has happened before in

another proceeding and f apologized *- well, maybe you can

say it first. and then f will.

MR. PItrTREWICZ: Pietrewicz.

MR. RUBENSTtrIN: I will just mumble something.

Could f ask you about your report.? If I could turn t<:

page 2 of yÕurs, and in the second paragraph you discuss

how "the IESO needs assessmenl is not a plug-and-play study

in which a different transmission configurations and in-

service date can l:e suhstituted without thorough

consideration, study and analysis. " Do you see t.hat?

I wonder if could you expand cn that, and

specifically, how is a needs assessment undertaken?

MR. PIETREVüICZ: Sure. Can you hear me, first of all?

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Yes.

25 MR. PIETREFüICZ: What I'm trying to get at here j-s

?6 ,that,Llre'îEË'0ts g:o*Õa:Lled n,eedõ.,ãslee$$mêñt:sr and,.,,theø;e afe

27 several of them, they consider a couple of things. They

28 look toil-- itrey look at t.he requirement for electricity

(613) W2727
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i- service on a forward-looking basis in nort.h-western

Sntario'.

So number one, that's what they do. They identify a
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need fer eïectrj-city service.

Fut that's not. all Èhey do. They then compar.e options

for addressinq the need. And so the options that they

eo¡Bpåre,ín particular are -- or.rather generally are a

s an expansinn of

the existing East-Íüest Tie compared to family of

alternatives, íf you will, which was more akin to
generati.on-orienteci options .

So nurnber one, it looks out and assesses needs for
elec[ricity service. Number two, it compares tlrpes of

opti*ns fnr,addressinE those needs.

And the point here about this plug-and-play word is

that A, it compared a part.icular type of transmission

r-rlrLir-rrr Lr*r ¿ .larrr ily nI r.Ji[[r*rcrrl,.. 1..¡r¡rr*;i lr.[ r¡*rreral,. ir..rrr

options. But thatrs the main point, that the particul-ar

type of transmission option had certain characteristics.

ft had characteristics around, yÕu know, when v'rould it be

in service. It. had characteristics around what would it

cost, for example, and that was factored into the

cornparison of a Lransrnission opt.ion compared t-<.r Lire

generation options in the so-called needs analysis.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: So I read your -- and you talk about

this on paqe 3,that you do nol recommend lhe IESO

undertaking a new needs assessment.

Let me ask you just as a practi-cal question. If the

(618) 6ô/,-2727
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caveat., but I think it's in t.he order of months rather than

days or weeks. The IESO may have different views. This

has been my experience "

MR. RUBBNSTEIN: Tf I could take you irack to paqe 2.

You summarize ôn page 2 the findings of the needs

assessrnent. You saíd there's a number of bullet poinls.

MR. PItrTREWICZ: Yes, I see that.

MR" RUBENSTEIN: If I can take you to the third one.

I just want to confirm this with you.

So I read this, and you have a better sense of how to

read the needs assessment report than I do with your

hackçiround. I take it thal the capacity need in 2020 is

240 megal'¡atts. Arì I correcL?

MR. PTtrTREWICZ: Yes, that's correct, that.'s what it

says here.

MR. RUBENSTtrTN: And by 2t22 that will the capacity

needs will exceed 260 megawatts.

MR. PIETREVüICZ: Yes, again, that's what it says, and

this is an excerpt from the IESO study.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: So the difference ofr sây, a December

in-service date in the NextBridge proposal and an in-
service date at some point in 2022, 1et's sây, is a

difference in -- the increase of capacity need will have

groÍ¡n by 20 megawatts?

MR. PIETREV{ICZ: f agree with your arithmetic and I

agree with your point, but, there is an additional

difference, which is, there would be a risk for a capacit.y

deficit in the year 2t20 that would remain unaddressed by a

27

aÕ
LO
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transmission expansion, so what you're saying is t.hat if a

transmission line came in-service in 2021, instead of 2t20

-- yes?

MR. RUBENSTETN: Yes, 2420 I'd say, but, sure.

: need night qroh¡ in general by

a couple of meqawatts, but B, the need originally
identified or estimat.ed or anticipated for 2020 would be

unaddressed by a Lransmission facility and would therefore

need to be addressed some other way.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: But it r^¡ould need to be addressed

before 202]., correct, before the in-servj-ce date of the

NextBridge project.

MR. PÏRTRHÍITÇZ: Pnt-enLial.lyn yfrs, i ncieecl, j.ncleerf"

MR. RUBENSTEfN: So all we're doing by potentially
moving the in-service date by one or two years, I take it,
is two things: One is the capacity shortfall will have

lncreased by 20 megawatt.s, côrrêct.?

MR. PïETREF{ICZ: Correct.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: And the second is a sort of i-nherent

risk to the system will have been pushed off by one further
year?

l4R. PIETREÍüICZ: That's right, r¡re would be exposing

nort,hwestern Ontario to one additj-onal year of supply-

adequacy-related risk.
MR. RUBENSTEIN: Now, the fact that the IESO pushed

out t.he needs for the project. already to ?02A, and t.here is
already a 200-rnegawatt capacit-y shortfall, what does tha't-

tell us then about the real risk of pushing it out a lit.tle
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I can't tell you exactly what the decision-making was, I

can't speak for them, but I imagine that it was some kind

of reconciliation of all these fact.ors, including

understanding risks, understanding how to deal with them,

understanding what the cost is, and making a judgment on

the efficacy, the cost efficiency, of managing risks, given

the uncertainties.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Using your expertl-se, is a delay of

the in-service date of one or, sãy, two years, would that

be an unmanagieable risk for the IESO?

MR. PIETREFüICZ: fn my experi-ence, I think there is a

question mark. And this is my basic point. I donrt r^¡ant

to overstate it, but I al-so d.on't want to understate it.
My basic point is that number one, deferring t.he in-

service of a transmission facility, sêy for example from

., in my opinion,

add one additional year of exposure to the northwest

system. It would.

But number two, I'm not sure I think there is a

fair degree of uncertainty in terms of the manageabitity of

that. Why? Because number one, what are these options

that we can use to manage an in-servj-ce delay risk or some

exposure risk? What is -- what are the lead times of these

opt,ions ?

I mean, j-t's 20LB nor^r. What we're talking about is
i-f that's oflining up something potentially for 2A20,

course t,he decision. So what is the lead time of doing

that? What is the mechanism by which to secure that?
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Irm not saying it's not possible. But as far as I'm

concerned, while strongly implied that it is manageable, I

don't think, in rny view, that it has been demonstrated.

That's my ma-in pcint, and the second related point is

that based on my, you know, admittedly rather limited

reading of the evidence that Trve been asked to read, f'm

not sure to what extent any costs of managing lhat risk

have kreen incorporat-ed into the analysis "

So there is some exposure, part A, right? There is

some exposure. Two, I'm not saying that. it is

unmanageable, but f don't know. It hasn't been

demonstrated that it's manageable.

Anci C, I'm not slrre whether the costs of managi"ng thaf-

risk har¡e heen f aclored into an analysis . That's my l¡a,sic

point.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: As well ês¡ I would âssume, the

benefit. Or:e wc¡ulc1 ässuïrë that if the Board decides t<:

delay it, then they have made lhe assumption that the Hydrc>

One project is cheaper.

MR. PIETREWICZ: Cr:rrect. I rrreån, it-'s å cosL-

benefi'L; I hear you. And I'm talkinr¿ right now about the

costs, Vês.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Thank you vel:v much. Those are my

questions.

MS. T,RA: Thank you very much. Mr" Stephenson?

QUESTTONS BY MR. SÏËPHENSON:

MR. STEPHENSON: Good morning, panel. My name is

Richard Stephenson, and f'm counsel for the Power l{orkers'
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r¡/ill seek r,'rill be quite voluminous, so I think a day might

i:e a bit optimistic.

One question about the EA. You can'L start clearing

the land until you get EA approval; is t.hat correct?

MR. MAYERS: That.rs correct.

MR. MURRAY: But you are still confidenl that you will

be able to complet-e the line for in-service by 2A20?

MR. MÃYERS: We aTe.

MR. MURRAY: And do you have any sort of drop*dead

date in Lerms of if the EA wasn't complet.ed by X date we

would have lrouble getting it in by 202t?

MR. MAYEF.S: No, we have not speculated that.

MR. MURRAY: But you musl have some sense, like, for

example, I believe a 1ot of the clearing has to take place

in the winter; is that is the EA, contingent on a lot of

the clearing taking place in the v¡inter? No?

lltfitness panel confersl

MR. MAYERS: Yes, j-t is preferab.ì-e to work i.n the

winter fo::

MR. MURRAY: But is it a condition of the trA or not.?

MR. MAYtrRS: It may be.

MR. MURRAY: And so to the extent that you didn't

start in the wj-nt.er, that may delay things up to a year?

Would that be a fair...

MR. MÃ.YERS: It 's possible.

MR. MURRAY: One more question about the Liming of the

EA. Does NextBridqe have any reason t-o believe that any

parties may file an appeal with the ERT or e.lsewhere for

f6?s) 564/.2727
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201,6, and then -- which the Ministry and others commented

on it, and provided comments to NextBridge.

In July of ?0\1, Next.Bridqe did submj-t a final

environmental assessment. Through the reviewf werve

identified some concerns and based on that, NextBridge

submitted an amended environmental assessment in February

of 20L8.

MR. MURRAY: And my understandíng is when that. was

submitted then, there was a period of -- was it either 30

or 45 days for comments, public comments on the resubmitted

EA. Do I have that righl?

MR. EVERS: Yes. So on the amended environmental

as-sessmenl:, the comment period was Febrr,rary 16th tr: March

?gth, zaLB.

MR. MURRAY: Did anyone provide comments on the

amended EA?

MR. EVERS: They did.

MR. MURRAY: Did anyone oppose the construction of the

EWT line in their comments?

MR. EVERS: NoL LiiaL I'rn aware of, no.

MR. MURRAY: If I could ask to -- once again on page

4, f'm now looking at the last sentence on page 4 of the

evidence. where iL's written:

"Once the MOECC review and consultati-on is

complete, MOECC staff prepare a decision packaqe

for the Minister of the Environment and Climate

Change. It j-s ant.icipated that a decision

package for NextBridqe's East-West Tie prolect
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!üill be prepared for the Minister in late fall

2018. "

So when I see the words late fal-1, I interpret t.hat to

mean November t or perhaps early December. Is that -- am I

reading that right? Is that sort of the time period we're

looking at?

MR. EVERS: Yes, likely November, December, yes.

MR. MURRAY: And then at this point, a package goe$ to

the MinisLer, a decision package?

MR. EVERS: We1l, that's so the Minister's decision

we're anticipating for late fall 2.ü1,8. But yes, before

that, a decision package would be provided t,o the Minister.

MR. MURRAY: Then once the Minisler has the decision

package, how long does it" take for the Minister to make a

decision, typically?

MR. EVERS: Yes, it's I can't make a can't make

a statement about that.

MR. MURRAY: f saw a reference to 13 weeks in like

kind of the f low cha::t of the varj-ous things. Is that sort

of a deadline in terms of the Minister --

MR. EVERS: It's a tineline Lhat's prescribed in the

deadlines regulation. So once the comment period on the

Mlnister review closesr $o that five-week period, there is

å l3-week periocl where we dc¡ issues resolulion. So j-f

there's comments received on the Minister review, \^Ie

provide those t-o the proponent for review an<1 respûnses.

And of t.en we'1l send those b¿rck ta the comrnenters to revie¡¡

as well.

(613) 5642727
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And in that 13-week period, we also draft the decision

package. That's got that gets provided to the Minister.

So l-3 v¡eeks, y€s, but aqain, if the Minister makes a

decision after that 13 r^reeks, it doesn't make that decision

i-nvalid.

MR. MURRAY: f qiue,ss whal f 'm saying is lhat 13-

week kind of deadline period, does that kick in -- are h,e

talkinq about mid November, early December. Is it l-3 weeks

from there?

MR. EVERS: The 13 weeks would be at the end of the

Minister review peri-od. So if we published a Minister

revj-ew in the summer:, there would be a five week timeline

fr:r receirzìng ccimment.s. Anci after thal- fi¡¡e week ti,me1 ine,

t.he 13 weeks would kick in. So t-hat late f all is the end

of the 13*week timeline.

MR. MURRAY: The l3-week timeline. And you said you

couldn't speculate as to hor¡ long the Minister would take"

Can you give me a ranqe, in terms of -* are these things

usually ** is it a week, is it two weeks? Is it a month?

MR. SVERS : I¡üeIl, it ' s the Mi¡lis Ler' ' s clecisiolr and

Cab,inet concurrence. so it also has to go to Cabinet. for a

decision. So it depends on the project.

MS. CROSS: Anrl the Cabi net scheriul e.

MR. MURRAY: But we wouldn't be "l"ooking at a day o::

two. It could potent.ially be a month or two?

MS. CROSS: Yes.

MR. MURRAY: Could it be longer? Could it be six

months?
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MR. EVERS : vte I ve had that happen, yes .

MR.. MURRAY: I see reference in some of the documents

to t"he Minister being asked to refer an environmental

assessment application to t.he environmental review

tribunal. Can you explai-n to me how that process works?

MR. EVEF.S: Sure. So the Minister review docurnent

that is published i:y the Ministry outlines a process for

interested persons, so t.he Indigenous corununities or the

public. If lhere is an outstanding concern that they feel

hasn't been addressed, they can submit a request for a

medi.atj-on or part or all of the environmental assessment t<>

be referred to the Environmental Review Tribunal. Once we

receive those requests we woulcl do a review, but the

Minister ultimately makes the decisj-on whether to refer to

mediation or refer to the Environmental Review Tribunal.

MR. MURRAY: And can you give me a sense of if that

request was made in the circumstance how long -- what sort

of impact that would have on the time lines in terms of

making a final decision on the EA?

MR. EVERS: Based ün my experience, we havenf L. -- \^¡e

haven'L had to review -- or send a project to mediation or

t,he Environmental Review Tribunal, based on my experience,

so I can't really -* I can't rea11y comment.

MR. MURF.AY: So I guess you answered my next quest"ion.

My next. question was how often does this happen. So in

your experience this docsn't happen "

MR" EVERS: No.

MR. MURRAY: Are you aware of any parties who said

{613} 6ðiÅ2727
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l- that they will take NextBridge either to the ERT or

2 indicate that they seek some sort of judicial intervention

3 in this matt.er?

4 MR. EVERS: No, fror not that I'm aware of sÕ far.

5 HR. MURRAY: And one final question. Can NextBridge

6 kind pf begin fheir clearing Çf their land without the

7 approvä} for the EA. or does the EA have to be granted

I before that can be done?

MR- EVERS: The EA has to be granted.

MS. CROSS: And they would need to obtain

MR. EVERS: lfhatever permits.

MS. CROSS: *- permits frorn other regulators,

including lhe Ministry of Natural Resonrceñ ancl Forestrtrr.

MR" EVBRS: So t.he EA process is qenerally the first
pro s that proponents will complet.e, and then there is
depending on the project, subsequent permits and approvals

thåt nêêd t0 bê obtalned.
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MR. MURRAY: One othe:: question f have is f don't

know if you are awålie, but one quest-ion the Board asked be

addressed in this notion is Lile scenario where NexLBridge

would build the line up until l:o[h ends of the park and

then Hydro One would reinforce the line through the park.

To t"he extent" that" thaf scenårio wa.c to mo\/e forward,

can you give me a sense, in terms of-, would that require a

whole new EA, would that be an amend¡nent to the EA? In

either -- in u¡hichever scenario it ends up being, cân you

give me

MR

a sense of how long that would take?

EVURS: It's complicated; it is a complex

(613) 5æ2727
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EAs.

MR. STEVENS: Okay. And what can you summarize

what they've told you in t.erms of their react.ion to the

time that you are proposing?

MS. CROLL: So we've had numerous meetinqs with MOECC.

Wit,h respecl to a declaration order, il i-s difficult Lo

presuppose how long that would take. Typically it is

shorter than an individual EA process, and we heard the

MOECC suqgest a range of six to nine months yesterday. hie

feel that that would be appropriate, given the six monlhs

that \nre've suqgested.

With respect to individual EAs, we have had verbal

di-scussions with MOECC around possible ways to expedite

t,hat process, and we have had mostly verbal meeling

discussions. I suppose we would have to get permission

from MOECC to share those meeting notes.

MR. STEVENS: Did you get permission from MOECC to

share everyt.hing that you've shared up lo this point?

MS. CROLL: f think the correspondence thatrs formal

- sorry.

MS. LEA: Is the green light lit, not on Mr. Vrlarren's

side, but yours. f think you share with Ms. Strachan.

MS . COOPER: HoInI' s that?

MS. LEA: I think your microphone is working. Is Lhat

workingi for you?

MS. COOPER: Okay, I've got it.

I believe as part of the evidence that was filed,

there were documenls, correspondence exchanged between
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MS. LtrA: To report back.

MS. CRNOJACKI: To report back under advisement, if

the MOECC agrees that Hydro One provide a sunmary of t.heir

comments reqiarding the proposed environmental assessment

schedule.

UNDERTAI(ING ¡IO. Jr2.2: HYDRO ONE TO PROVTÐE A S{${MARY

OF THATR COIIMENTS REGARDTI\TG THE PR.OPOSED ENVTRONIIIENTAS,

å.ssEss¡{nNr SCHEDU:*g / rF Moncc ÀGREES To }rscl.osE

MR. STEVENS: Thank you. While we are on the topic of

Hydro One's planned EA process, my understanding from your

evidence is that you are in the process of commencing your

<rwn EA process.

MS. CROLL: Yes.

MR. STEVENS: And does your own EA process rely in any

way on the NextBridge EÀ documentation and studies?

MS;' CRCILT,: YêË .

MR. SigVENSi can yöu explain how?

MS. CROLL: So it is our opinion that the NextBridge

EA studíes aïe a public document. There aïe several

reasons for this.
MR. STEV$NS: T'm not asking why, actually. I'm

asking,,hcw \rou åre, Soing,.Uç, re.ly, pn-,*,t.

MS- CROLL: How we would rely on it?
MR. STEVENS: Whal parts of t.hose documents are you

using; how are you coming to have those documents.

MS. CROLL: So those document.s are a matter of public

record and they are available for public review, so v,¡e

(613) 5642727
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would be referencing those documents. üùe wouldnIt intend

to undertake and re-do all of the studies for the route

sections that are shared. We would be undertaking our own

st.udies for the secti-ons of the route which differ.
But given that information has already been coll-ected

lr that that's for the use of the lineand it is c1e¿

constructor, we would use that information. lte're well

aware that relying on that information is at our own rj-sk,

and we would take steps to verify that information where þ¡e

deemed it necessary. And we would also take steps to

that there r¡Iere no

additional concerns with our proposed undertaking-

MR. STtrVENS: Okay, thank you. So is that. different

than from lthat you said in your prefiled evidence? I'm at

tab B, schedule 7, tab L, page 10.

My apologies, I meant to I wrote the wronçt

reference down. Sorry, the reference I should have gi-ven

yÕu was Exhibit R, t-ab 7, schedule I, page 6, the key

assumptions.

As I read your second key assumplion, YOU had been

requiring or expecling tirat NextBridge's entire EA

development work would be made available to Hydro One' and

I assumed that that included a request for all of the

unde::J-ying studies and data, and everything lhat was used

to huild-up the EA.

Did I understand correctly what your initial request

was ?

{613) 5642727
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the underlying studies and specifics of consultation would

be provi-ded. Iiùe expecled to use what was publicly

available in the published EA documents.

MR. STEVENS: I see. 5o your request now, in any

event or your expectation now is that you would be ab,le

to prinl off whatever is publicly available, and use and

rely on that aL your own risk?

MS. CROLL: That's correct.

MR. STEVENS: And you don't see any requirement to

obtain consent from any other party to do that?

MS. CROLL: No.

MR. STAVtrNS: And you're ahrare that you in fact don't

have the consent frorn any other from Next-Briclge or ot.her

parties who conLribuled to the EA to do that?

MS. CROLL: Vüe're aware we don't have consent. But f

uiould say that we wouldn't necessarily have to print or

leprocluce Lllal tlocunrenL. IL 1s publicly available rlow. We

would be referencing lhat document.

MR. STEVENS: I see. Are you asking any spec,'i"fic

relief from the Ontario Energy Boa.rd L.o be able to do tirat?
MC ñÞa\TT. Àrn

MR. STEVENS: Are you asking any specific relief from

the MOtrCC to be able to do that?

MS. CROLL: The MOECC woul-d obviously have to supporl

that approach, l:rut speci-f i.cally we haven n t asked for relief

at this point.

If we ¡¡¡ere t-o request a declaration <¡rder we vuould

sugqest that that publicly available information would

(613) 5æ2727
ASAP Rryrting Senøæsfnc
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reference route through Pukaskwa National Park.

MR. STEVENS: And what happen if Parks Canada

determined that they will not grant you the opport.unity to

use quad towers on your existing route through the park?

MS. CROLL: So j-n the very unlikely case that Parks

Canada did not allow us to go through the parkr w€ would

know that by, I woul-d expect, late in Q4. And at that

point, we could complete the EÀ such that we could use the

alternate route to go around Pukaskwa.

MR. STEVENS: Am I right in assuming that" would rely

almost entirely on the EA materials filed by NextBridge?

MS. CRCILL: Yes, with the exception of the minor

changes that are resulting from our route, that again being

t.he footprint area of the corridor being reduced by

approximately 50 percent, and the change in tower design.

MR. STEVENS: Vùhen are you anticipating approval from

Parks Canada?

MS. CROLL: $Ie would anticipate approval -- þ¡e expect

in December¡ so sometime in Q4, late November or December.

because our studies would have been done at that point and

we would Ìrave submit.ted our impact assessment and provided

time for review by Parks Canada.

MR. STEVENS: Can you remind me what your evidence

says? I don't remember seeing -- I remember seeing a much

earlie:: date than l)ecember, but I might be wrong on that.

MR. SPENCER: So j-t's in fact on page 5 of our May 7th

evidence.

MS. CROLL: Late 2018. I think thatrs consi-sLent with
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MS. CROLL: Yes"

MR. RUBENSTEIN: So f would like to know røhat is your

-- what would be the revised timeline if you were told by

the MOECC that you could not do that and you had to

essentially do all the studies and all the work yourself,

what would be the -- how would the schedule look in that

t;.45e f

MS . CROLL: I don'l think I could comment on that. I¡rle

haven't looked at that scenario. It's our pôsition that

those -- the NextBridge EA is a public document and can be

used.

MR. RUBtrNSTEIN: Nô, f underst.and that's your positi-on

anri yor: may hre -- hopefi:.1."1.y a:re cor:r:ect.

But I'm just lryinqi to understand what the worst case

scenario, f guess, is and how that would adjust the

schedule.

So you don't know -- you don't have a vlew of what thê

revised end date of the envíronmenlal assessment would be?

MS. CRÕLL: No, I really don't.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: AIl right. Let me ask you -- I want

to understand v+hat. type of work is contingent on Ëbat

approval on the environmental assessment as vre go down the

..l{s'f,,,,:";

So imagine that you get the approval, instead of June

2}1g, you get it in Ðecember 2019. !{hat gets shifted?

Vtould everything be shifted the same duration? So could I

-- essentially you get the

six months later and it is December 2A1,g. Would the ner^r

{613) 56iL2727
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.1 ce e be the end of June, 2AZI? Is thal a fair

MR. SPENCER: I might. take the first attempt., Mr.

Rubenstein, and then my colleague, Ms. Crol1, can elaborale

on further specifics.

So sitting ín on the technical conference last week on

the cther proceeding, it was evident t.hat Lhe members of

t.his proceeding arö interested in differenL scenarios

around r^ihat if s.

So we of course undertook Lhat analysis Lo prepare for

today for those types of questions. Honestly, I think it's

prudent that anybody on a project of this size would have

previously done that- for the hearing.

So to your specific quest.ion around what about the

impact of environmental assessment delays, if we talked

about a three-month delay, just. as a hypothetical, the

there would be no impact on schedule. We would stitl be

able to hit our year*end z\tg in advance sorry. a year*

end 202L project completion date, And just for interest,

the cost would add about an extra $1.4 million, which is

funded within ouï contingency already. So our t.otal

construction cost would not change.

On the six-month sit.uation, the six-month scenario of

receivj-ng EA delay, there would be an incremental cost

impact of approximately $5 million, again funded within our

established contingencies.

To be able to hit and maint.ain a year-end

would have to look acceleration of some of the

2OZIr wê

construction
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activities. We have clear l-ine of site as to what those

are and when r,¡e would have to mobilize on those particular

deçisionç, which would come in at a little bit of an

incremental- cost that between Hydro One and SNC-Lavalin we

feel can be manages within our established contingencies.

So 'in summâry, s¡e âre conficient in our ahil ity tn meef"

our completion date both with a three-month delay of EA

approval, as we]l- as a six-month delay, although lhe eix

month delay would eat into some of our funded cont.ingency a

little b-it rnore lhan we had -- rn¡e'd have to manage other

rlsks in the project even tighter.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: And what point in *- what amount of

delay causes the project. to rnove off t.he December 2021 in-

service date?

MR. KARUNAKARAN: Effectively, il would require us to

actually conmence the work such that we lost. t"he first

season of clearing, right?

Our project, as far as the clear'ing activíties, no

dj-fferent. f mean, the constraints as far as the clearing

activities are no different whether you are looking at the

NextBridge project or our project" There are certain

environmental consLrainls where you have to clear the right

of way in the winter, right?

There's if we were to actually be delayed beyond

the point where you lcst Lhat first winler of clearing,

whilst r^¡e would look at all means of accel-eration, it would

be extremely challenging for anybody, you know, to actually

recover b,ack on that.
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would t.he timeline with respect to that applicalion change?

MR. SPENCER: There is no envisioned changie to the

project. The planned completion date within that

applicat.ion j-s December 2t2A. We are to your next

questionr we åre, ín fact-, on track to maintain that

schedule as of today.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: I¡üell, but would you maintain i'L if .

you know, your project isn't forecast lo go in-service for

another year? hlould you maintain that same schedule?

MR. SPENCtrR: Yes, w€ are treating that project

independently from the transmission line portion.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Atl right, let me sorl of start from

the top here akrout your project here. Can you help me

understand: Vühen did you first determine that you were

going to bring or you would consider bringing your own

leave to construct project

MR. SPENCER: Just, to clarify, I^¡e are back on 4364?

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Yeah, with respect to the East-I¡Iest

Tie line.
MR. SPENCER: So the chronol-ogy is important, so thank

you for raising it. we've been, of course, since the

designation process interested in this project, no doubt.

And early in 20lr7 rde were originalì-y planning to file our

station section 92 application in the proceeding you

referenced. For reasons that weren't immediately clear to
us at t.he time, there were delays requested from NextBridge

to allow additional time. We always agreed that we would

submit our section 92 an applications on the same day,

2L
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¡¡hich r:ltirnately we did on July 31st, but early in the year

¡¡e ?{ere asked to slow, and hold, I should say.

So around that time v¡e didn't take anv active pursuit

of this project, but as time lapsed. we certainly became

attuned to the fact that there was potential that there

cculcl he ã sr:hst"antiaL change that r*as cal¡sing t"he ciela1r,

so in and around the end of March we, in fact, informed

NextBridge that -- not to share any potentially sensitive

or confidential information with us, as it pertained to the

transmission line application either on schedule or cost or

anything of the like, and the fact that we might be a

competitor. And we informed them by e-maiJ-, and Ms.

Tíd.marsh, who is of course very involved in the project,
r^tas a recipient to that as wel1.

You know, mont.hs proceed. On July 31st, once the

l-eave to crrnstrucl âppLication was submitted to the Boarrl

for the, you know, the sum total of development

construction of 111 million, we knew that any of the

feasibilj-ty studies we had conducted up to that point, wê

knew we certainly had an applicati-on that we felt compelled

to bring forward to the Board for consideration.

MR. RUBBNSTEIN: Alt right.
MR. SPENCER: September 14th we in fact submitted a

.l.elter to the IESO, who by that point had already been

under the Minister's di.::ection to revisit the need of the

project, just to make sure it was, in fact-, the riqht.

investment f or Ontario. Ult.imatelyo hre f iled our leave to

construct application in February 201-5 sorry/ February
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i- ?018, consistent wíth the work we had done over the

2 preceding months to be in a pos.ition of readiness to offer

3 substantial value both in capital savings and in ongoing

4 maintenance cost for ratepayers of Ontario.

5 MR. RUBENSTEIN: All right. Let me break that down.

6 So as I take it, something triggered your view in, f

? believe it was -- maybe I misread this -- March of 2018,

B and that you may want to bring a competing appJ-ication --

MR. K.ARUNAKAR.AN: 201.7 . 2tL7

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Oh, 2AL7, that you may bri-nq a

competi-ng application unless you informed NextBridge to nol

share any confidential information.

MR. SPENCER: That is correct..

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Can you provide the correspondence

that you provided to NextBridgre?

MR. SPENCBR: We can do that via undertakinq, yes.

MS. CRNOJ.ACKI: Okay, that is JY2.LB, Hydro One Lo

provide correspondence wj..th NextBridge where they informed

them about planning to file the applicalion for LSL.

I]IiIDERTAI(ING l{O. .J?2.18: }IYÐRü OtfE TO pROVÏnE

CORRESFTNDENCE ?ûITH $¡EXTBRTDGE WHngE ÏHEY ÏI¡F'Oil,fED

THEM AßO{'T P:,ANHTNG TO F'TLE THE APPITCåTTON FOR LST.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: What triggered -- can you help me

understand what triggered that view at that time?

MR. SPENCER: As I previously mentioned, there was a

delay that we just honestly didn't understand what the

causal factors r/¡ere, and. I think through fast week's

technical conference and testimony of from the
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NextBridge panel, I think all part.icipants now have a more

MR. RI"]RENSTFITN: All right.. And then you dícl some

additional feasibility work updating, I guess, other work

that you had previously done? I mean, did f get that

correct?

MR. SPEIIICER: A comblnatlon of work previously done in

years gone by, as well as bringíng the joint. expertise of

our two organizations of Hydro One and SNC-Lavalin, to see

if there äre any new potentj-al solulions Lo Liris

transmission project.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Can you help me understand -- I'm not

an ongin,e-er and I don I L -¡^¡.ork f,or L{ydr.o OR.o --: wheR you are

talking about feasibility studies, what are we actually

talking about? Íühat Lype of work rrere you underlaking?

MR. SPENCER: I mean. we both have a strong

engineerinq characLer as part of our organizational

cult.ure, and so bringing a combination of the engineering

I .J
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1 I don't recall where I was in your applications, I

2 believe, at Exhibit. B T apologize, B, t.ab Lt, schedule I

3 -- no, t.hat ' s the schedule . I 'm sÕrry, B7 .

4 MR. SPENCER: Tab 7?

5. Maybe r{te can

6 just sort of have that in the background for this
/ o.r_scussr-on.

B I want to understand how you derived this budget. Can

you help me understand what ** hor¡ you came up with the

construction cost budget?

MR. SPENCER: Sure. ItIl dj-scuss from a general

sense, and,ask lt{r. Karunakaran to speak to the specifics.
But. 85 percent of these costs are in fact part of our

fixed price contract with SNC-Lavalin. So, you know,

construction, site clearing and prep, material, project

management, engineerl-ng, most of those items are in fact

L4

15

16

L7

IÕ
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2A

2L

22

n)
LJ

24

25

lY)

27

all within the scope of the SNC-Lavalin.

So we worked together wit.h them to define the

requirements for the project, and then SNC-Lavalin

developed the specific detail of these underlying line

it.ems, and specifically t-he anes I ment"ioned around

conslructicln, site clearing, remediation material and

others.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: And the conlract with ** well, let me

back up.

How did you -- how did the partnership with SNC-

Lavalin begin? Was there an RFP, RFQ, some sorL of

competitive process, at through some other basis?
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MR. SPENCER: So SNC-Lavalin is one of our pre-

qualified engineering partners and EPC partners.

Specifically on EPC, we have two. Thre ot.her firm was

conflict.ed on this particular case because t.hey've worked

previously with NextBridge, so they did not ** h¡ere unable

to participaÈe with us, but we worked directly with SNC-

Lavalin on this project.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: And I understand from the schedule

t.hal you don't actually have a -* or you werenrt scheduled

to have a signed contract at this point. Vühat. is the

status of the contract, with SNC-Lavalin?

MR. RUBENSTEIN: So you signed -- I missed that last

Part. So you actually have ð.n execuled EPC cont.ract?

MR. KARUNAKARAN: IL. is not execul-ed. It is an

executable version.

MR. SPENCER: We would only execute if we were

successful in the sect.ion g2 proceeding.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: f'm trying to avoid asking for the

fu11 contract; it's very detailed.

Is the memorandum of agreement substantially similar

in terms of the terms as the executable version, or is it

actually -- h¡as there some. . ,
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have to use this route, the L.otal cost will be this?

MR. KARUNAKARAN: It's being provided as an indicatory

position. but not as part of the fixed price.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Are you so is Hydro One able to

prcvide what they Ï:'elieve the recognizing that there is

no actual contract for that amount, what the value of that

contract would be if you hiere using the NextBridge route?

So, in terms of your providing as an earlier

underlaking the budget b,reakdown l:ased on making a number

of assumptions ¡¡ith respecl to the NextBridge route, are

you able to do a símilar thing to tell us what the value of

the conlr:act would bre?

MR. SPENCER: I mean, functionally the scope of the

EpC ccntract -- this is a little bit different th¿rn

NextBridqe, bul it is in fact all engi-neerinqi, procurement

and conslruction activities "

So I would suggest that we have the ability to projecl

what that contract could loo.k like"

MR. RUBENSTEfN: Can you do that?

MR. SPtrNCER: We can, yes.

MR. LAVAEE: That would be JT2.23.

T,NDERTAKTNG NO . JX2.23 TO ASTTMATE THE VJ\LUE OF

CONTRACT FCItLOWTNË T:{A ¡çEXTBRTÐËH RÕUTH

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Now, with respecL lo where you are

currently in the design process. what AACE f believe

that's the acronym *- class are you with respect t.o the

design?

[Füitness panel confers]
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MR, KARUNAKÀRAN: It's subject to check, it will be

an AACE Class 3 estimate.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: And based on your current schedule,

when woul-d you expect to be a Class 2?

MR. KÃRUNAKARAN: Around October of this year.

MR. RITRF,NSTRIN: Thank yort very mr,rch.

So you've obviously had an Õpport.unity to look at lhe

NextBridge application, and you participat.ed in their

technical conference¿ you've reviewed their application. I

believe at a high level I understand the position you

will be providing a variance analysis, but can you heJ-p us

understand why are you guys able to do it so much more

cost-ef f ectir¡ely?

MR. SPENCER: Sure, wê can speak t:o iL, and some of

the details will follow in the undertaking we spoke of

earlier.

A porticln of the savings are no cloubt a tunclion ot

our: optimized route through Pukaskwa, taking approximately

50 kilometres off the overall- l..ine lenglh, but actually,

the largesl differences I'11 buckel them as follows, and

jusL Lo h¿rve an understanding of the NextBridge cosLs,

these are as reflected in CCC B. But the largest portion

af the difference is about. $40 million of contingency, and

the way the Lake Superior link project i-s bui-Lt, most of

our contingency is, in fact, managed within t,he fixed*p::j-ce

EPC conlract where, in t.he NextBridge casë. they've moved

that up.

Now, there may as well be some contingency that is
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with Mr. Pietrewicz and I apologize if he's listening in

for how I just pronounced that.
I understood from him -- I brought him to his report

and asked him questions, and there l^ras some discussion

earlier aboul this today about essentially the capacit,y

shortfall. And I put to him that it appears only that. the

difference between t.he in-service dates was about an

additional 20 megawatts of capacit.y shortfall"
And his response, in part, wås there's also a risk

that also exj-sts that there's that the syslem needs to

be able to deal with for another year.

And r was wondering if you could provi-de yÕur

response, did you have any thoughts with respect to whal he

hras talking about yesterday in that regard?
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We believe t.hat overall, it's probably 1ow risk
because the capacity shortfall, as r^re understand it, is
computed with a number of very conservative planning

assumpt.ions, which is entirely appropriate from a planning

perspective when you are looking at a project for 40,50,

60 years.

But when you're looking at a much shorter timeframe of

three to four years, the likelihood of all those

conservative factors actually showing up in that period is
a lot lower. And íf lhey do show up, it's debatable as to
potentially what that shortfall might be in that period.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: So he seemed to -- and I accepL this
that either one year or if it's two years, whatever the gap

between the two projects projected in-service dates will
j!Ìlrjrjjrr:r r ;:i::r

be, that there wil-l be a cost because the IESO will have t<>

procure other resources or manage. . .

MR. YOUNG: CIn1y it the shorttall actually shows up.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Let's just assume that the numbers

are correct and the shortfall does, there would be some

ôthêr costs tó the system.

Can you help us ballpark? What are we talking abollt

in terms of the additional cost to the system in those

years'/ What is the magnitude r¡¡e are tal-king about here'i

MR. YOUNG: Unfortunately, I can only talk in
generalities. I don't have line of site to the forecasts

and resources, and what their cost might be.

What I would say is that the cost difference woul-d be

the difference in the cost for the replacement generation.
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So if you didn'L have t.he east-west tie available at that

Ievel, and you couldn't in order to supply the

nort.hwest, and you needed it, so in lieu of the generation

that might have been elsewhere in the province of Ontario

to supply the northwest, yoü may -- just as an example,

let's say you needed to procure it from Manitoba, then it

would be the price difference in that resource, whatever

that is for the amount of time for which you might be

deficient.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: Are we talking about a few million

dollars, tens of millions of dollars, a hundred million

dol lars ?

MR. YOUNG: It would all depend on the energy, riqht.'

ancl Hydro ûne doesn't have lhe information or the models to

provide that kind of forecasting.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: If I turn to your evidence at paqe 20

sorry. this is the motion evidence, page ?0, and you

l^rere hrrought to thj-s. This is a ta.ble showinq the

incremental capaci ty r:equirements .

So is it fair if I read this table, in your view" t-o

say 2024 is the real drop-dead period" Something needs to

be in place by that at the latest, because we see lhis big

jump in the capacíty price based on Lhe forecast here at

that point.

rs that a fair assumption for me to make, in your

V _LCW I

MR. YOUNG: Vüe1l, cerlainly it is a more significant

increase in the capacity shortfall, and that coincides with
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your project timeline? Is there a time for your project

for the IESO to do another run at the needs assessment to

take into aÇcount yÇur prÇjeÇts proposed -- your proposed

proj ect?

MR. SPENCER: Independent of the potentially requesLed

IESO neecls assessment, ot-rr forecasted leave to construct

approval date is in Octaber of 2018 - So if there was nÕ

substantial change to that, w€ could st.ill target a year

end 7.A?: date, anrd jr-rst" rem'ìncJ yoll earl jer of the four

months' float we had spoke Lo in our schech:le.

MR. RUBENSTBIN: So you can move four months with

respect to the leave to construct *- well, let's -- v¡e

talked eäifier about the environmental- asËessment delays

and how that pushed off the project, what the implicati-ons

in regard to -- depending on delays.

With respect to leave to construct, when is
essentially the latest leave to construct date that you can

have without the project -- with the project coming in-
servj-ce as proposed?

IVrlitness panel confers]

MR. SPENCER: Just consul-ted with rny colleaque here,

and subject to verification, but we think approximatety a

three-mon.b'i! ti"mel'ine would .s't.i11 ' be managÊable ¡ " so tha't

would -* just to be clear, November, December so thal
would be approximately -- y€s, that would be an approval in

December 2018.

MR. RUBENSTEIN: And lastly, I mean, there is a lot of

discussion about the December 2t21. That's your forecast
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MR. ADAMSON: So the Ministry of the Environment and

Clímale Change has never suqqiested that that's a realistic

timeline. You said it's never even been discussed.

MS. CRCILL: That's correct. So t.o be clear, they've

never suggested it wasn't realistic. lfe just. provided them

with our schedule recently.

MR. ADAMSON: And similarly, June 201-9 has never been

discussed with the Ministry of the Bnvironment and Climate

Change as a timeframe for a declarat.ion order?

MS. CROLL: We talked about typical timing of

declaration orders and at a meeting, we suggested that six

months might be a reasonabl-e timeline. It was difficult at

that point. for ministry staff to presuppose how lonq the

minister rnight take to make t-hat decision.

They did not suggest that it was unreasonable. But to

your point, they didn'L agree that it was appropriate. It.

as very difficult to determine.

MR. ADAMSON: So the consistent message -- and correct

L9 me if lrm wrong -- has been what I took Mr. Evers,to sâY

20 and Ms. Cross to say yesterday, that in a non-emergency

21 situation, if an adequat.e basis for issuing a declaration

22 order is provi¿à¿ to the mj-nistry. a typical tirneline would

23 be six lo nine months. Does that sound right?

24 MS. CROLL: , Yes. .A,nd we're suqgesting six months.

MR. ÄDAMSON: Those are aL1 my questions, lhank you.

MS. LEA: Thank you, Mr. Adamson. Mr. Garner?

MR. GARNER: ?hank you, Ms. Lea. It is getting late

in the day. I'm tryinq to go quickly, so please don't t.ake
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